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lndependent Auditor,s Report

Toa the Members of TENAX ptDtL|TE tNDtA pR|VATE LtMtTED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind As iinanciat statements of TENAX plDtLtTE IND|A PRIVATE L|M|TED
('the company'), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2024, the statement of
profit and toss (inctuding other comprehensive income), the statement of cash ftows and
statement of changes in equjty for the year then ended and a summary of signjficant
accounting poticies and other exptanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our jnformation and accordjng to the exptanatjons given to
us, the aforesaid IndAS financiat statements give the information required by the Companies,
Act 2013("Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affajrs of the Company
as at 31'r March 2024 and its profjt, changes in equjty and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit jn accordance with the Standards on Audjting (SAs) specifjed under
section 143('10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibitities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiat statements
section of our report. We are jndependent of the Company jn accordance wjth the Code of
Ethjcs issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndja togetherwith the jndependent
requrrements that are retevant to our audit of the financiat statements under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 20'13 and the RuLes thereunder, and we have fuLfiLted our other ethicat
responsibitities in accordance with these requirements and the code of Ethics. we believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provjde a basis for
our opjnion on the Ind As financjat statements.

Other lnformation

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsibte for the othel intormation.
The other information comprises the Djrector's report jncLudjng Annexures to Director,s
report, but does not inctude the financjatstatements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financjat statements does not cover the other jnformation ano we oo not
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In connection with our audit of the financiatstatements, our responsibitity is to read the other
information and, jn doing so, consider whether the other information is materiatty
inconsistent with the financiaI statements or our knowtedge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materiatty mjsstated. lf, based on the work we have
performed, we conctude that there is a materiat misstatement of thjs other jnformatjon, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in thjs regard.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsibte for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,2013 (,,the Act',) with respect to the preparation and
presentation of these financjaLstatements that give a true andfair view of the state of affairs
(financjat position), profit or loss (financiat performance inctuding other comprehensjve
income), change in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accountjng
prjncjptes generatly accepted in India, inctuding the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act. The respectjve Management and Board of directors of the
companies are responsibLe for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detectjng frauds and other irregutarities; setection and appLjcation of appropriate accounting
poticies; making judgments and estjmates that are reasonabte and prudent; and desjgn,
jmptementation and maintenance of adequate internat fjnanciaI controts, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and compteteness of the accounting records, retevant to
the preparatjon and presentation of the financjaL statements that give a true and fajrvjew and
are free from materiaI misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financiat statements, management and board of directors are responsibLe for
assessing the Company's abiUty to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appticabte,
matters reLated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accountjng unless
management either intends to tjquidate the Company or to cease operatjons, or has no reaListic
atternative but to do so.

The respectjve Board of Directors are responsibte for overseeing the Company,s financial
reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether the financiat statements as
a whoLe are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that inctudes our opinion. Reasonabte assurance js a hjgh LeveI of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs witt always detect a
materiat misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered materiaL if, jndividuatty or jn the aggregate, they coutd reasonabty be expected to
inftuence theeconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financiaL statements.
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As part of an audit jn accordance with Standard on Auditing, we exercise professional
iudgment and maintain professjonat skepticism throughout the audit. We atso:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financiat statements, whether
due to fraud orerror, desjgn and perform audjt procedures responsive to those rjsks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a materjal mjsstatement resulting from fraud js higher than for
one resuLting from error, as fraud may invotve co[usion, forgery, intentionaL omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of jnternaL controt.

. Obtajn an understanding of interna( financial controts retevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are approprjate in the circumstances but not for the DurDose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's internalcontrot systems.

. Evatuate the appropriateness of accounting poLicjes used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimatesand retated disclosures made by management and Board of Dtrectors.

. Conctude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern bast's of accountjng and, based on the audit evidence obtajned, whether a materiat
uncertajnty exists related to events or conditjons that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's abitity to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention jn our auditor's report to the
related djsctosures in the financiat statements or, jf such dtsclosures are inadeouate, to
modify our opinion. Ourconctusions are based on the audit evidence obtajned uD to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overaLl presentation, structure and content of the financiat statementsr
inctuding the djsctosures, and whether the financjat statements represent the undertyjng
transactions and events in a manner that achjeves fair presentation.

Materiatity is the magnitude of misstatements in the financjat statements that, indjvjduatty or
in aggregate, makes it probabte that the economjc decisions of a reasonably knowtedgeabte
user of the fjnanciaI statements may be inftuenced. We consider quantitatjve materiatity and
quaLitative factors in

{r) PLanning the scope of our audit work and in evatuating the resutts of our work; and
(ii) To evatuate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged wjth governance of the company regarding, among
other matters, the ptanned scope and tjming of the audit and signifjcant audit findings,
jnctuding any significant deficiencies in internaLcontrol that weidentify during our audjt.

#s
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We aLso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comptied with
retevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to commun]cate with them att
retationships and other matters that may reasonabLy be thought to bear on our indeDendence.
and where appticabteJ retated safeguards,

From the matters communicated wjth those charged with governancer we determjne those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financiar statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audr't matters. we describe these matters in our auditor,s
report Ltntess taw or regutation prectudes pubtic disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremeLy rare circumstances, we determine that a matter shoutd not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonabty be expected to
outweigh the pubticinterest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legaland Regulatory Requirements

1 ) As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained atl the information and exptanations whjch to the best of
our knowtedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by taw have been kept by the
Company so far as jt appears from our examination of those books.

c) The batance sheet, the statement of profjt and toss including other comprehensive
income, Statement of change jn Equity and statement of cashfLow deatt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of accounts,

d) In our opjnjon, the aforesaid financial statements compty with the Indian Accountjng
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

e) 0n the basis of the written representations received from the djrectorc as on 31 March
2024 and taken on record by the Board of Djrectors, none of the directors is disquatified
as on 31 March 2024 frcm being appointed as a director in terms of Section .164 (2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internat financiaL controts over the financjal reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controts, refer our separate report
in Annexure 'A'. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectjveness of the company's internal financiat controts over fjnancjat reporting:

Wjth respect to the other matters to be jncluded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requjrements of sectjon 197('16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinjon and to the best
of our jnformation and accordjng to the exp(anatjons given to us, the Company being the

c)
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prjvate timited company the provjsions of thjs section are not applicab(e to the comDanv
hence not commented on the samej and

h) With respect to the other matters to be incLuded in the Auditor,s Report In accordance
with Rute 11 of the Companjes (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, jn our opjnion and to
the best of our informatign and according to the exptanations given to us.

a. The Company has no pending titjgations that woutd impact the financjat positjon of
the Company.

b. The company did not have materiaI foreseeabte loss on tong term contracts inctuding
derivatives contracts;

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor Education
and Protectjon Fund by the Company.

d. (i) The management has represented that, to the best of jts knowLedge and betief,
no funds have been advanced or Loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, inctuding foreign entjtjes (,,lntermediaries,,), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwiseJ that the Intermediary
shatt:

. directLy or indirectly tend or invest in other persons or entjtjes jdentifjed jn any
manner whatsoever ("Uttimate Beneficiaries,') by or on behatf of the Company.
Or

. provide any guarantee, security or the Like to or on behatf of the Uttimate
Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of jts knowledge and beLief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entitiesJ inctuding
forejgn entttjes ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shatL:

. directly or indirectty, tend or invest in other persons or entjtjes identified in any
manner whatsoever ("Uttimate Beneficjaries,,) by or on behalf of the Fundjng
Party. Or

. provtde any guarantee, security or the tike from or on behatf of the uttimate
Beneficjaries; and

(jii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonabte and approprjate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to betieve that the
representations under subclause (i) and (d) (ii) contajn any materia[ mis-statement.
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(iv) No divided decLared or pajd during the year by the Company. Hence comptiance
with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not apphcabte.

e. Provison to Rute 3(1) of the Cornpanies (Accounts) RuLes, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software whjch has a feature of recording audit traiL (edit tog)
facr(rty is applicabte to the Company wjth effect from ApriL 1, 2023, and the same has
been operated throughout the year for att transactions recorded in the software and the
audit trail feature has not been tampered with and the audit traiL has been preserved by
the cornoany as per rhe starutory requirements for record .etention.

2) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the 'Order') issued by the
Central Government of lndia in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in Annexure 'B' to
thjs Report, a statement on the matters specified in para 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the
extent aDoticabLe.

For Maheshwari & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 311008E

Sateesh PatiL

Partner
Membershio No. 22711'l

uDtN, Z\7L1 3lfBK CUR U 8 63 5

Ptace: Bengaturu
Date. 23.04.20?4
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Annexure ',A,, to the Independent Auditor,s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under,Report on other legal and regulatory requirements, section
of our report to the Members of TENAX ptDtL|TE INDIA pR|VATE LtMiTED oi even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub - section
3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (,,the Act,,)

we have audited the internat financiar controts over financial reporting of rENM prDrLrrE |NDIA
PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company,,) as at i1 March 2024, in conjunciion with our audit of the
financiaI statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the company is responsibte for estabtishing and maintaining internai
financiaI contro[s based on the internaI controt over financiai reporting criteria estabtish;d by the
company considering the essentiat components of internat controt stated in the Guidance No[e on
Audit of Internat Financiat controts over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of chartered
Accountants of India ('lCAl'). These responsjbitities incLude the desjgn, imptementation and
maintenance of adequate internat financiaI controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderty and efficjent conduct of its busjness, jnctuding adherence to company's poUcies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracv and
compteteness of the accounting records, and the timety preparatjon of reliable financrat inform;tion,
as requjred under the Companjes Act, 2013.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility js to express an opinjon on the internaI financiat controts over financjal reporting
of the Company based on our audjt. We conducted our audit jn accordance with the Gujdance Not;
on Audit of Internat Financjat Controts Over Fjnanciat Reporting (the,,cuidance Note,,) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on audjting prescribed under Section
141 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent appticabte to an audit of internat fjnancjat
controls and, both issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the
guidance note requjre that we compty with ethicat requjrements and ptan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonabte assurance about whether adequate jnternat fjnanciat controLs over financjal
reporting were estabtished and majntained and if such controts operated effectjvely in all materjal
respects.

Our audit invotves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
jnternat financiaL controts system over financjal reportlng and their operating effectjveness. Our
audjt of internat financial controts over fjnanciaI reporting jnc{uded obtaining an understandjng of
internat financialcontrots over fjnancjal reportjng, assessing the rjsk that a materjaL weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internat controt based on the
assessed risk. The procedures setected depend on the audjtor,s judgement, inctuding the assessment
of the rjsks of materiat misstatement in the financiat statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtajned, js sufficjent and appropriate to provjde a basjs
for our audjt opinjon on the Company's internalfinancjaLcontroLsystem over financjaI reporting.
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Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company's internat financjat controL over financiat reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonabte assurance regarding the reLiabitjty of financiat reporting and the prepafation of financiat
statements for external purposes jn accordance with generaLty accepted accounting principtes. A
company's internaL financiaL control over financiaL reporting jnctudes those poticies and procedures
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabte detai[, accuratety and fajrty reftect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financiat statements in accordance
with generatty accepted accounting principtes, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are bejng made onty in accordance with authorjsations of management and directors of the company;
and (jii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timety detectjon of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or djsposjtion of the company's assets that coutd have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent timitations of internat financjaL controts over fjnanciat reporting, inctudinq
the possibjtity of cottusion or improper management of override of controts, materiaI misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Atso, projectjons of any evaluatjon of the
internat financiaL controts over financiat reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internat financiat controi over fjnancial reportjng may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of comptiance with the poticies or procedures may deterjorate.

Opinion

In our opinjon and according to the informatjon and explanations given to us, the Company has, in alt
materiat respects, an adequate internat financiat control system over financiat reporting and such
internat financiat controis over fjnancjal reporting were operatjng effectiveLy as at 31 March 2024,
based on the jnternat controt over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
consjderjng the essentjat components of internaL control stated jn the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financia[ Controts over Financiat Reportjng jssued by the Instjtute of Chartered Accountants
of lndia,

For Maheshwari & Associates

uDtN: 2 4221311 BKCURU 3(35
Place: Bengaturu
Date:23.04.2024

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reeist.ation

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No. 22731
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors, Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" Section
of our report to the members of Tenax Pidilite India Private Limited of even date,

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financjaI statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and exp(anations
gjven t0 us and the books of account and other records examjned by us in the normat course of audit,
we state that:

(i) In respect of company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assetsi

a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing futt particutars, incLudjng
quantjtatjve detaiLs and situatjon of Property, Plant and Equipment and retevant detaits
of right-of-use of assets,

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing futt particutars of intangibte
aSsets.

b) The Property, Ptant and Equipment have been physicatty verified by the management durjng
the year and according to the information and exptanation given no materiat discrepancies
were notjced on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the
Property, PLant and Equjpment is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets.

c) With regard to the factory building constructed on the teased Land, the company is yet to
obtain the tjtte deeds from retevant Panchayat ALrthorities. Based on the approvat for
construction recejved from tocat panchayat and necessary statutory ctearances by the
company, in our opinion the jmmovabte properties are hetd in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revaLued any of its Property, Ptant and Equjpment (including right-
of-use assets) and intangibte assets durjng the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at 31 March 2024 for hotdjng any Senami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibitjon) Act, 1988 (as amended jn 2016) and ruLes made thereunder.

(ii) a) The management has conducted physicat verification of inventory at reasonabte intervats
durjng the year and no material discrepancies between physicat inventory and book
records were noticed on Dhvsicat verification.

b) Accordjng to the information and explanations given to us, and the records examined by
us, the Company has been sanctioned workjng capjtal limjts aggregating to not more
than five crores by banks or financiaL jnstjtutions on the basis of security of current
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assets at any point of time of the year. However, the same has not been utitjzed by the
Company during the year.

In our opjnlon and according to the information and expLanations given to us, there are
no Loans and jnvestments made by the Company as per sectjon lg5 and lg6 of the Act.
Accordingty, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not aDDtjcabLe.

(iii) According to the information and exptanations provided to us and Dased on our audit
procedures, The Company has not granted any toan, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limjted LiabiLity Partnerships (LLps) or other parties covered in the register
majntained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordjngty, the provjsions of c(auses 3(iii) of
the Order are not aDDticabte.

MAHESHWARI & ASSOCIATES

b)

(iv)

(v)

(vtl

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rutea, 2014 (as amended).
AccordingLy, the provisions of ctause 3(v) of the Order are not aDDticable.

To the best of our knowledge and beljef, the Centrat Government has not specjfied
maintenance of cost records under sub-sectjon (1) of Section 148 of the Act, jn respect
of Company's products/services. Accordingty, the provisions of ctause 3(vi) of the Order
are not aDDlicabLe.

(vii) Aacording to the information and explanations gjven to us, in respect of statutory dues:

The Company js generatty regutar in depositing undisputed statutory dues jnctuding
provident fund, emptoyees' state insurance, jncome-tax, sales-tax, service tax, Goods
and Servjces tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, vatue added tax, cess ano otner
materiat statutory dues, as appticabte, with the appropriate authoritjes.

There were no undisputed amounts payabte in respect of Provident fund, EmpLoyees State
Insurance, Income tax, SaLes tax, Service tax, Vatue Added Tax, Goods and Service tax,
Customs duty, Excise duty Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March
2024 for a perjod of more than sjx months from the date they become payable.

There are no dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sates-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise and vatue added tax on account of any djspute.

viii) There were no transactions retating to previousty unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or djsclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act. 1961.

(ix) a) The Company has no toans or borrowings payable to a financial jnstjtution or a bank or
government and no dues payabte to debenture.hotders during the year. According(y, the
provjsions of clause 3(ixa) of the Order are not appticabte.

c)
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b) The Company has not been dectared witfut defautter by any bank or financiat institutjon
or government or any government authorjty.

c) The Company has not taken any term toan during the year and there are no outstanding
term toans at the beginning of the year and hence, reportjng under clause 3(ix)(c) of th;
Order is not aooLicab[e.

d) The Company has not taken any short-term toan during the year ano tnere are no
outstanding shot-term Loans at the begjnning of the year and hence, reporting under
ctause 3(ix)(d) of the Order js not appticabte.

e) 0n an overatt examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
does not have any Subsidiary, Associate and Joint venture entities and hence,
under ctause 3(jx)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

Company
reporting

on ctausef)

(x) a)

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting
3(rx)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company did not rajse any money by way of injtiaL pubtic offer or further public
offer (inctuding debt instruments) and hence, reporting under this paragraph 3(x)(a) of
the order is not aDDticabte.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferentiat
ptacernent of shares or convertibLe debentures (futty or partty or
reporting under ctause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not appticabte.

(xj) a) According to the information and exptanation gjven to us, no
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during
our auctt.

attotment or private
optionatty) and hence

materjat fraud by the
the period covered by

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been fited in
Forrn ADT"4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companjes (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014
wjth the CentraL Government, durjng the year and up to the date of thjs report,

c) As represented by the management, there are no whistte bLower comptaints received by
the Company during the year (and up to the date of thjs report),

(xii) In our opinion and according to the informatjon and expLanations given to us, the
Company js not a nidhi cornpany. Accordingty, paragraph 3(xji) of the Order is not
aDDticabte.

(xjii) According to the information and exptanations given to us and based on our examjnation
of the records of the Company, transactjons with the retated parties are in comptiance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where aDDticable and detaiLs of such transactions
have been discLosed in the financiat statements as required by the appticabLe Indjan
accountjng standards.

#\
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(xiv) In o]Jr opinion and according to the jnforrnation and exptanatjons gtven to us, the internaf
aucrr provrsrons are not appticable to the Company. Accordjngty, paragraph 3(xiv) of theOrder is not aDDticabte.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, the company has not entered into non.cash transactions with itsotrectors or persons connected with it5 directors. Hence provisions of sectjon 192 of
Companjes Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Comganv.

(xvi) a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45,1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting unier ctause 3(xvj)(a) and (b) of the
Order is not aDDUcabte.

b) In our opinion, the company is not a core investment company (as defined in the Core
Investment Companjes (Reserve Bank) Directions, 20t6) and accordingLy reportjng under
ctause 3(xvj)(c) of the Order is not applicabte.

c) In our opinion, there are no Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture companies for the
company and accordingty reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is noi aDDticabte.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financiat year covered by our audit and
the jmmediatety preceding fjnanciat year.

(xviji) There has bee| no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the fjnancia{ ratjos, ageing and expected dates of reatisation of fjnanciat
assets and payment of financiat tiabiLities, other information accompanying the fjnanciat
statements and our knowtedge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attentjon, which causes us to betieve that any materiat uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audjt report indicating that Company is not capabte of meeting its tiabjtjties existjng at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fal due within a period of one year fromlhe
batance sheet date. We, however, state that thjs is not an assurance as to the future viabilitv
of the Company. We further state that our reportjng is based on the facts up to the date of
the audjt report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that a tiabitities
fatling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, witt get discharged by
the Company as and when they fatLdue.

(xx) a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Sociat ResponsjbiLity (CSR) requiring a
transfer to a Fund specified in Schedute Vll to the Companjes Act in comptiance with
second provjso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordjngty, reporting
under ctause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

b) There are no amounts required to be transferred to a Speciat account within a period of
30 days frorn the end of the sajd financial year in compljance with the provisjon of sectjon
135(6) of the Act.



MAHESHWARI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

(xxi) The financjal statements are not consolidated financjat statementsJ
under paragraph l{xxi, of the Orderis not apptrcabte.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regjstration No.: 311008E

uDtNt 2 r_,2 2t3t IBK C U RU g 635
Ptace: Bengaluru
Date: 23.04.2024

accordjngly, reporting

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No.: 227311



T6iar Pldlllte tndia Priv.t Lhited
r;alance she.t Es at 31st March, 2024

In terns oi our Reportatlach€d

ForMaheshw.d& Associalos

Date:23rd ApaL 2024

sanjay Baffia;

DIN: 00032590

t In Lrkh8

OIN:09466788

31.03.2021 31.03.2023

ASSETS

(a) Prcperty, Plantand Eqoipm€nl
(b) Rishtof use assei
(c) Capital Wo&-ln-P.os rsss

{d) OtrerlntangibeAsssts
(e) F nancalAssets

(i)others
(0 Income TarA$ets (nei)

(g) Olher Non cuif6.tAssels
Tobl Nofl Crrr€ntAssots

(b) Financia Assels

(ii) Trade Re.eivab €s
(ii) Cash and cash equ valents
(iv) Bank BaLances olherthai Cash and Cash equival€nls above

(c) Other Cuf6nt Assels
Total Cu ffont A3set!

3

5
6

I

10

11

12
13

TOTALASSETS

EQUITY ANO LIABILI'IES
EOUITY

1a) EqulySha€ Cap tal 16

17

2,54916
7T.43

761 21

15.64
3.78

17.33

286.84
83.55

1,898.43
770.04

48.02
17 33

3,424.55 3.112.47

501.09

971 58
258.06

75.70
14 42
0.86

330 04

1,554.87

293.15
3E5.37

19.50
13.73

470.59
2,15t,74 2,?44,91

5,576.J0_ 5,867.46

60.00
4.76158

60.00
4.517.62

Total Equity
LIABILITIES
Non.Current Llabilitie.

(i) Leas6 Liab lities

(b) Delered Tax Llabiities (net)

Tot lNon Curr€nt Llabillties

Cu iient Liabrlltles
(a) FinancialLiabilrlies

(i) Lease Liabilities
(ii) Trade Payablos

Totaloutsianding dues ofmicro and smallenle|p s€s
Totaloulslanding dues of olhe6

(lii)OlherCu.rsnllinancial Lablili€s
(b) OlherCu.€nl L abiliti€s

Toial Cu ft6n t Liabililies

18
22

19

20
21
22

4.821.58 4,51f,62

82 59
194,60

6.35

86.87
123 47

2.34

283.5{ 212.72

4.24

7.32
378.59
43.00
36.48

0.85

3.91

44.87
709.79
270.08

34.46
001

171.18 1,081.12

TOTAL EOUIWANO LIABILITIES 5,57!.30 6,8t.46

corpo::te r,rr'n6Gicrrra sigi tl;s
See accompanying not€s forming partolihe iinanoal siatemBnls .

cont ngenl LiabiLites and Commllmenls

'llo2

32

Dare:23rdApil 2024 Y



rsnax Pldtttto hdta prtviie Ltmtted
St t€ment of Profit and Los!forth6 pe?iod ondert 3lstMarch,2024

ln terms oiour Report ettached
For Mahsshwar: & Assoclates
chartered Accounlanls

Fnm Reg.No:311008E

a in Lalhs

Forand on bohall ofthe Boafd Of Director8

DtN 09466788

,.^.r. -J,,.1 '

San,ay Bahadur \. . 
_: 
' ., Manieha Sh€fty

Director onector
DIN 00032590

Aale: 23td Aptil, 2424

i,,lembelship No.2273

oate: 23rd Apil,2024

31.03.2024 31.3.2023

Totel Compreheneiv6 Incom.

23

24

INCOME
Revenue fiom Operalions
Olher Income

EXPENSES
Cosl ot lvlaterials Constlmed
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Changes in nventoi€s of Fin shed Goods, Work- n-Prcgress and Srockjn-T€de
Employee Ban6f tB Expense

Dep€c al on and Amort zation Expense
Olher Expenses
loial Expema3

Pront bofore Tax

25
26
27

3o
3T

Current Tax

Other Comp.ehan3lve Income
Item3 th.twill not bE reclasslfled to profit or lols
Actuarial Gains/(Losses)
Income tax Glating to ilems lhatwillnotbe reclessifiod lo protit or oss
Total Other Comprehensive Incomo

43

ErrnlngB 9er Ehar€

Basic (Rs.)

Diuted (Rs.)

Face Value of Sharc (Rel

3,505 93

47 15

3,553.27
82 70

3,553.08 3,635.97

994.22
1 030 97

435.61
137.99

13.49
138 03
484.35

61304
2,259.62
t143.27)

11.41
37.96

500.94
3,230.66 3,280.10

322.12 355,87

70.45 26.25
E0.41 E3,54

212,01 272.23

2.41
(0.66)

243,96

403 35

403 35
100.00

453.72
453.72
'100.00

1la2
3to46

Slg n lfacant Acco!nting Policies
seeaccompanying notesfoming part ofthe fiha nc ial stal€nenG

Ne\ 
3 lss\

1Ji
e"\x

v



f.n6x Ptdilite lndr. Prtv.te Ltmited
Statemenr or c.3n Fro* ro. rhe y.areno6o J16r Marc12024

Th6a@mpanyne.otesar€ form n! pan orlho li na tu'ar sl?renen rs.

K\r:

v

31,03,2024 31,3,2023
a. ca6nnow lbn op6.a{nq acliviri€E

Adtushqt tot:
D€precid on and amonizaton elp€nse
Nal oseoi roretgn cu@icy l.anE

Ner qain aising on tiianciara*e16 / Liab liiies d€stgnaled es ar FVTPL
Bad d6bts and advarc6s widen oir
L6s ot Prcpeny, Ptani & Equipmenr

Oporarlhg trotlt b.,or€ wod<lng capi1!t changes

M6eed.n! ln aotki@ .abftnt:
ltnc@s.) | d..tetse ln op.Edng .s6ets:

olher fiianct.! Curcnr assels
orhel financtat Non Curenl asseis

Othet ion curenl assels

lncrc$e / ld.d@sa) tn opetaung llahiltl.s:

orher cunenr F nancal Liab iiie6

Cash leneralod ftod opersllon6
Nei rn@me rax paLd (Ner or Refund)

N.|.arh q.n6hled from oo.hll.a acrivhtos rtl

(11 25)

416.21

136.37
t6f2,u

1593,92t 45?,31

1,163,05 A)1,30

1,202.30 157,76

B, Ca5h llo* lrod inv€silng a.iv llo3
Purchase ol Propedy, Planl and Equipmenl

N6r crsh u$drn krv$r rn. .cav106. rBr

(64O00)
(1,333.40)

(269.00)

c. ca3h tlow lbn nnEdclng rcrrvllrer
RepaymentorfinancB L€as€ obr€atids

N6l hcrease/(dscr€a3.) in cash and casn oqulvalenls lA+B+cl
cash ahd @sh equva enrs ar rhe beginn n! oi Ihe year
c8shandcahoaulvalentsallhe.rdoltheveariR€t rNoi€l2l

(1,920.23)

19.50



Tenax Pldilite India Prlvate Limited
Statsment of changes In equity forthe year ended 31st March 2024

A. Equity share capital
a in Lakhs

Particulars As at

31.03.2024 3'1.3.2023
Equity shares of Rs 100 each issued, sLrbsc bed and fully paid
Balance allhe beginning of the reporting yeaf
Changes in equity sha|e capital du ng the year
Balance at the end ofthe rcportinq year

60 00 60.00

60.00 60.00

B, Oth6r equity
I in Lakhs

Pa*iculars Retained earninq Total Othe. Equitv
Balance as on 1st April 2022
Pfofit for the year
Other Comprehensve lncome for the year, net oftaxes
Balance as on 3lst March 2023
Profit fof the year

Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes
Balance a8 at March 31, 2024

4,245.35
272.23

4,245.35
272.23

4,517.62
242 A1

1.95

4,517.62
242.01

1.95

4,761,58 4,761.58

T're accor4panying notes are forn.lg oart of the'rne']c a stateneFts

In terms of our Report atiached
For Maheahwari & Associates For and on behalf of tho Board Of Oirecto.s
Chartered Accountanis
Fim Reg.No:311008E (i\

Lvnt u

Manisha Shetty

DlNr 09466788

Sateesh Patil
Partner
lvembership No. 227311

Place: Bangalore
Date: 23rd April, 2024 Date 23fd April. 2024

.r:i.-J'-'41
San ay Bahadtri \

;:)

1

Director
DIN:00032590

Place:Mumbai



TenaxPldllite tndie Private Limlted (Formerly Known asTenax India stone Produ.tr P.ivate Llmitedl
Notesto the tlnancial Statements forthe year ended 31"r March 2024

1, CorDoratelnformation

Tenax Pidilite India Private Limited (Formerly Known es Tenax India Stone Prcducts P.ivate
Limlt€d) (Refered io as "Th€ cornpany") is engaged in the busin€ss of manufactur€ and irading ot
adhesves, coaling, sufface trealment chemicals aod abrasives lor the marble, granil€ and stone
induslry.

2, Significa nt Acco unting Policieg

2.1 gasis of preparatlon and presentation

(s) Statement of compllance

Thes€ financial statem snts are prepared in accodancewjth Indian Acco!nting Slandatds (lnd AS)flolified
und€r the Companiss (lndian Accounting Stendards) Rules, 2015 read wilh Seclion 133 of lhe Companies
Act.20'13

Accounting policies have been consislenUy applied excepl where a newly issued aceounling standatd is

initially adoptod or a .evision to an exisling accouniing standerd requkes a change in the accounling policy

hithedo in use,

ib) Basis of measurcment

The linancial statements have been Drsoafed on a historical cosl convenllon and on an accruai basis

except for the following maierial items iiat havs been measured at fair value as tequircd by relevant Ind

AS:

i Certain financial asseis and llabilities meesured at fak valle (refer accounting policy on

lin6ncial inslruments) and

ii. D€ined benefit and othef lono-l€m €mployee bsnefils.

ii. Th€ lrtangible assets and lhe righl to use of an assels

lc) Us€ of estimates andiudgem€nt

The Dr€oaration of tinancial statements in conformiiywiih Ind AS tequires managemenl lo makoilldgmenrs'

estimat;s and ass!mptions ihat affect lhe applicalion of accounting policies and the rcported amounls oi
assets. liabililies, lncome and expenses Aclual tes!lts may diff€r lrcm these eslimates Estimates and

undedying assum ptions are reviewed on a peaiodlc basis Revisionsto accounting estimales are recognEed

]n th€ period in whjch the estimales are revised and in eny future pe ods affecied

(d) Estimation of uncertaintles relating tolhe globalhealth pandemic from COVID'i9 ICOVIO_I9l

The Company has considefed the possible effecls that may result from th6 pandemic relaung lo covlD _

19 on the cairying amounls of receivables and unbilled revenues ln developing the assumplions 
'elatinglo the possible fu0re uncedainties in ths global economic conditions becauss of thj6 pandemic' lhe

Company, as at the dat€ of approvalofthese nnancialstatements has used internaland €xternalsources

ol information The Company has periormed sensilivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on

cuff€nt €stimates expects the caffying amo!nt oflhese assels wilbe racovered The impact of COVID '19

on ihe Company's financial stat€ments may differ from thai estimated as ai the daie of approval oflhose

fna ncla I statements.

le) Curasrt versus non-current classlfication

The company presenls assets and liablliiies in the balance sheet based on currenl / non-current

classificaiion.

#\
I (oencetur"i '"

a"



T€nax Pidillte lndia Private Limlted lFormerlY KnownasTenar IndlaStone Products Prlvate Limit€d)

Notestothe Flnanalal statements forthevear €ndsd 31" March 2024

An assat is tr€aled as curenl when it isi

- Expecled io be aealised or iniended to bo sold or consumed in normal operallng cycle,

- H€ld primarily forlhe purpos€ oltrading,

- Expected to be realisod within twelve months aftefihe reporting period, oI

- Cash or cash €quivalent unless rcst cted from being exchanged of used lo setil€ a liabilily for at least

twelve months sfter the reporiing peiod.

Atlother assels are classitied as non'curlenl.

A liabilitv is currentwhen:

- lt is expecled lo be settled in normal operaling cycle

- ll ls held primarily forthe purpose olltading,

- ltis due to be settled within tw6h/e monlhs aft6rthe repoding period, ot

- Ther€ is no unconditional right lo defet the setuement of the liability for al least twelve monlhs afl€r lhe

aeporting period.

Tho Company classifies allothor liabilities as non-c!ffent.

Deforred lax assets and liabilities arg classiiled ss non-curfent a65els and liabilities

The opsraling cycle is the time between the acquisition of assels iol processing and iheir realisalron in cash

and cash equivalenls, The Company has identlJied twelve months as lls oporaling cycle

(0 These financial 6tatsm€nls are presenled in Indian Rupees (l)which isthe Company's tunctional

cuffencv. Au linancia: information prosented in (l) has b€en rounded lo the nearest lakhs (up to two

decimals), excepl when indicai€d oihetwis€-

2.2 Revenue rccognition

a)Sale of goode

R€venue tiorn conlractwith cuslomers js tecognissd when the company satisfies perfotmance obligafion

bytrangteffing promised goods to th€ cuslomef. Pedormance obligalions ar€ saiisned ai a point of lime or

oier a period of lim€, Pe.formance obligations salisfied over a pe od of time ar€ recognised as per lne

lgms oi relevant contractual agreemgnts/affangem€ nts, performance obtigations are said to b6 satisfied

at a point of time when the cuslomer obtains controls of the a93el Revenue is m€as!rcd based on

transaclionprice'whichisthefailva|ueoftheconsidela|ionleceivedorreceivab|e'slatodnelofdiscounts'
retufns and value added tax, Transaction pric6 ls recognis€d based on lhe pdce specined in the conlract

nel of lhe estimaled Sales incentlvas/discounts. Accurnulaled expedence is used to estimate and provide

for ths discoLrnts/right of reium, using tho expecled vaiue metlrod.

(b)Service income

R€venue'roms€ruicesisl€cognisedatlhefairva|ueoftheconsiderationreceivedorreceivab|efor
services renderod In the pe ods in which lhe seNices are render€d on a proraled basis ovel the p€nod or

a5 per lhe l€rms oflh€ conlracl,

(cl lntorest income

lnisrcsl incorhe {iom a financialassel is recognisedwhen itis probable thatthe economic benetiswillilow

loihe Company and ihe amounl olincome can be meesured roliably lnt€resi incoms is accrued on a time

dxs
i ("."e^,u"u) Ib#



Tenax Pidilite India Private Limited (Fofmerly l(nown asTenax Indla Stone Products Private Limltedl
Notestoth€ [inancial Statements tor the vear ended 3f i Marah 2024

basis by reference lo the principal outstanding and at the efieclive Interesi rale applicable, whlch is the
rate thal exactly discounls asiimated future cash rec€ipts lhrough lh6 expecled life ollh6linancial assel lo
lhat assel s n€tcarrying amounion inilialr€cognilion.

(d)Otherlncome

Scrap sales (i.e. Palates, drurn6 and olher packlng mate a l) is acco!.led ior as and when il is sold.

2.3 Foreign Currencie9

In preparing lhe financielstalements ofthe company, transactions in cu,fenoies oiher than the company'3
functional currency (iorergn clrfencies) are recognis€d at the rat€s ofexchange prevailing at the dat€s of
lhe transactjong, At lhe end ol each reporling period, monotary items (including financjal asseis and
liabililies) denominaled in foreign currencies a.e relranslated at lhe rates paevailing al lhat dat6. Gains or
losses arising from these iranslations are recognised in the stalement of Profit and Loss.

2.4T.xatlon

Income tax expense represents the sum ofthe lax curaenlly payable and d€fefied tax.

(a)current Tax

The lax curenily payable s based on laxable profil for ihe year. Texable profit diifel9 fiom 'P.oiit belore
lex'es reported in the statementof profit and loss because of items of income ofexpense lhat ar€ laxable

or deductible iri other years and items thal arc never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is
calculated using applicable lax rales thal have been enacled or substanlively enacted by the end ol lhe
repoding pe od and the provisions otthe Income Tax Act,1961and other lax laws, as applicabl6.

(bl Deferred Tar

Oef€rred tax is rccognissd on temporary differences botween the c€trying amounls of assels and liabililies
in the inancial stalements and lhe corresponding tax bases used in lhe computation of laxable profit.

Deferred tax liabllltles are generally recognlsed for all taxable lemporary diffe.ences. oefefied tax asseis

arc generally recognised for a ldeduclible tomporary differences lo the extentthat il i9 probable lhattaxable
prolits willbe available againstwhich those deductible lemporary diffe.ences can be ulilisod.

The carrying amount oideferred lax assets is rcviewed ailhe end of 96ch rcpo'ling period and reduced to
the exleni lhal it is no longer probable that sufllcient taxable Prctils \ll/ill be available to allow aU ot pad of
the assel to be fecovered,

D€ferred lax liabililies and assels are measur€d al the tax rates thal are oxpeoted to apply in the period in

which lhe liability is seltled orlhe assel realised based on tax €les (and lax laws)lhal have been enacled

of subslantvely enacied by the end oflhe reporting period.

The measurcmenl of deferred tax liabililies and assets teflecis the tax consequences lhatwould lollow lrcm
tho mann€r in which the Compsny €xpocls, al th€ end of the rcgoding p€dod, to recover ot seltls the

carrying amountof its assets and liabilitigs.

(c) curr€otand deferred tax for th€ ysar

Cufignt and deierrcd tax are recognised in proii or loss, except wh€n they relate to ilems lhat are

rccognised in other com prehen sive income ordirectly in €quily, in which case, the currantand delerfed lax
are also fecognised in other comprehensive income of dlrectly in equity t€spectively.



T€nar Piditite lndla Prtvate limlted {Formerly Known asTenax IndiaStone Products Private l-lmlted)

Notestothe Flnancial statem€nts tor the year ended 31'r March 2024

2.5 Faiavalus measurement

Ths Comoanv measures linancial insl.uments, such as, derivativ€s at fair value al each balance sheet

date. Fair value is lhe Driceihaiwould be recev€d to sellan assel or paid 10 lransler a liabilily in an od€tly
tmnsactlon belween market participants at the measuremeni dale. The fair value measurement is based

on the Dresumotion thatlhe lGnsaciion to sellthe asset ortmnslerthe liabiliiy takes place eilher:

. In lhs pdncipalmerkel iorlhs esset or liability of

.Inlh€abs€nceofaprincipalmarket,inihemostadvanlageousmarketforth€asseloriabilityThe
D ncipalorthe mosi advanlageous malkel musl be accessible by the Company

The fair value ofsn asset or a liabilily is measured using ihe assumplions ihat markel parUcipanls would

use when p cing tho assetor liabiLiiy, assuming thai malket participants acl intheir econonric best interesl

A fair value measurement of a non-inancial asset takes into account a market panlclpanls abilily to
generaie economic benefits by lsing the asset in ils hlghestand besl use or by selling itio anolher me.ket
participant lhat would use lho assel ln its highest and best use.

Ths Company uses vaiualion l€chniques thelare appropriaie in {he circ!mstences and fof which sufficieni

data are available to measure fair value, maximislng lhe use ofrelevant obseruable inpuls and minimising

the use of unobseruable inpuls.

All assels and liabililies for which fair value is measur€d or disclosed in ihe linancial stalem€nls afe

catego sed wlthin the tair valus hierarchy, desc bed as lollows, based on the lowest level input that is

significantto lhe lair value meassr€ment as a wholer

. Level 1 - Quoied (unadjusted) market p ces ln aciive markels for idenlical asseis ot liabilites

. Level2 - Valuation techniques forwhich lhe lowest level input that is significani lo lhe faif value

measuremenl is dkectly or indkectly observable
. Level3 - Valualion lechniques forwhich ihe lowesl Levelinput that is signlficant to the fair value

measuremeni is unobseNable

For essets and liabililies that are rccognised in th€ fnancial staiements on a recurring basis, lhe Company

delermin€s whether t ansfers haveoccured between levels in the hierarchy by re-assesslng caiegorisalion
(based on the lowesl levelinputthai is signiflcani lo lhe fair vslu€ measuremenl as a whole) atthe end of
each reporling period.

The Company's board deiermines tho pollcies and proced!€s lor both recurring fair value measurement,

such as derivative instfumenls and Lrnquoled financialassels msasured atfair value, and fornon"recur ng

measurement, such as assets held iordistribution in disconiinued operations

ExternalValuers are involved forvaLletion ofsigniiicant assets, such as propedies and unquoied Jlnancial

assets, and signifcanl liabijiliss, slch as contingenl consideration lnvolvemenl of exlemal Val'rers is

decided upon annually bythe boad. Selection criteria include markel knowledge, repulation, indep€ndenc€

and whether professional siandards arc mainlained. Valusls are normally rotaied ev8ry ihree yearc' The

boad decldes, after djscusgions with the Company's $ilemal Valuers, which valuation technlques and

inputs lo use ioreach case.

Ateach reporting date,lhe board analyses the movemenls in the valLres ofassets and liabilities which ate

required to be remeasured or re-assessed as perthe Company's accounting policies. Fo.this analysis,lhe

board verifies lho major inputs appli€d ln the lalest valuaiion by agreeing lhe infomation in the val!alion

compulalon to conlracts and other relevanl documenls- The board, in conjlnclion wilh ihe Company's

externa I Valuers, also compafes ihe change in ih€ fair value ofesch asset and liability wilh r€levanl exlernal

sources to delermine wh€thor the change is reasonable. On an intetim basis,lhe board and the Cofilpany's

fr\
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Tenax Pidlllte India Privat€ Limited (Formerly Xnown as Tenax Indte stone products private Limlt€d)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year end€d 31,t Mar.h 2024

external Valuerc present lhe valuation results to the Company s jndep€nd€nt auditols. This inctudes a
dlsclssion oflhe major assumptions used in the valualions,

For th€ purpose oifair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes ofassots and liabitlltes on
the basis ol lhe nature, characte stics and riEks of lhe asset or liability and lhe level of lhe far vatue
hierarchy as explsined above.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

(a) Prop€.ty, plant and eqLrlpment acqutred separatety

Freehold land is stated al cosl and nol deprecialed,

Bulldings plant and machinery, vehicle!, furnilure and oflice equipmenis are staled al cosl €ss
accumulal6d deprecialioo and accumulated impahmenl lossss, ifany,

Cosl ofan ilem ofprcporty, plant and equipment comprises ils purchas€ price, inctuding jmpod duties and
non-refurdable purchase taxss, afrer deducting trade discounts and rebar€s, any direcity €ftibutable cost
of bringing lhe ilem to its working condition fof its intended use and estimaled cosis ot dismantlnq ano
removing the item and rcsloing th€ site on which il is tocaled.

Properties in the course of consvuclion for produclion, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
c0s1, less any recognised impaim6nt los6. cosl ot such self-constructed ilem includes professional fees,
Such propedies ars classified to the appropriate cetegodes of propedy, ptant and equipment when
cornpleted and aeady for inlended use. Depreciation of lhese assets, on the samg basis as other propedy
a66ets commences when the assels are readv forlhek inlended us€.

An item ot prcpedy, plant and equipm€nt is derecogni3ed upon disposat or when no furure €conomrc
benerts are €xpscted io anse from lhe conlinued u6e ofth€ 66s€t. Any gain or toss arising on rhe disposal
or retiremenl of an ilem of propedy, planl and eqlipmenl is recognis€d in profit or losg in lhe year of

(b) Depr€ciation

Depreciation is provided so as to wrile otf the cost oiassels (otherlhan fieehold land and Capiialwork in
progross) less lheir residual values over lh€k useful lives, using ihe straight'line method. The esiimated
usefullives rcs dualvalues and deprcciation melhod are roviewed al ths end oieach rcpoding peiod, with
lhe effeci ofany changes in eslimale accolnted for on a prospective basis

Deprecjation on Propgrly, Plantand Equipment's provided, based on the eslimaled econom ic lives or using
lho rates ipecified in Sched!le ll to lhe Companies Aci, 2013.

LJs€ful Lifs
Buildino 30 vea6
Plant & [,lachinery 6 to 25 vears

Olfice Eouioment 3lo 6 veaF

2.7Intanglble Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful live6 lhat are acquked sep€rately are canied at cost leag

accumulalecl amortisation and accumulated impairmenl losses. Amorlisation is recognised on a
straighl-llne basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amodisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting peiod, with the effect of any changes ln
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est mate being accountod foron a prospeclivo basis. Intangible assets with indefinite usefulJive€
thal are acquhed separalely are caried at cost less accumulated impakment losses.

Usefullives ol intangibl€ asssts

Esiimaled use{ullives ofthe lnlangibe assels are as tollows:

Ljseful Life

Trade lvark lndeflnite Life

Computer Software 3 6 Yea|s

T€chnical Knowhow 10 Years

2.E lmpalrment oftangibls and intangible assets otherthan goodwill

At the end of eaoh reporting period,lhe Company teviews the carfying amounls ofits tang:ble and inlangible

aslets to deiemino wheihet there i5 anY indicaiion thal those ass€ts have sufiered an impairment loss. lf
any such indicalion exists, the tecovelable emotrnl oflhe assei is eslimaled in order io determine lhe extent

ofthe impairment loss (ifany). When it is noi possible to esllrnate lhe recoverable amounl of an individual

asset, the Company estimates ihe recoverable amounl ol ihe cash-generaling unil to which lhe assei
belongs. when a rsason6ble and cons stent basis ofallocalion can b€ ideniilled, cofporale asseis are also

allocaled to individual cash-generaiing units, oroihetuise lhey are allocated tothe smallest group ofcash-
generaiing units forwhich a reasonable and cons'stenl allocalion basls can be identilled

Intangible assets with indefinits us€ful lives and inlangible assets not yet available for use are test€d lor

impairment al least annually, and whenev€f there is en indicaiion lhallhe assel mav be impaired lntangible

assets with indefinit€ usoful lives arc 1€sl6d for impa rmeni annually at the cash generaling unit ievel Tho

assessmenl ofindolinite usefullile is rcviewed annuallylo deiemine wh ether ihe ind€finite life continres
lo be s!pportable. lf not, the change in useJll llfe from indetinlle to finite 1s made on a prospectlve basre

Recoverable amount is the high€r ofiair va !e less cosls of dispolal end value in use

lf the recoverable amount of an assel (or cash-genetaling unii) i3 esiimaied to b€ less than its caiiving

amo!nt, the carrying amount ofthe ass€t (or cash genemling unil) is reduced 1o i13 fecoverab'le amount

An impakment lo6s is fecognised immediately in prciit or loss

2.9 lnvento.ies

lnvento es are valued at lowel ofcost and nei lealisable val!6.

Cosl of inveniories is determined on weighted averag€ basis Cost for this p!rpose includes cosi ofdirecl

mateaials, direct labour, excise duiy and appropiate share ol overheads

Nel lealisable value rcpresents the estimated selling p ce in the odinary cou$e of business less all

estimated cosis ofcomplelion and estimated cosls necessary to make lhe sa e

unselviceable and sow/ non-moving slocks ale duly provided for and valued at netObsolete, def€cliv€,
fealisabls value,

#a\
(K#
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2.10 Provisions

Ptovisions are recognised when the Cornpany has a present obligation (legalor consiructiv€) as a r€sultof
a pasi event, it is probablethatihe Companywillbe requiredto settle the obligalion, and a reliable astimat€
caf bo made oflhe amount oithe obligalioJl.

Provjsions (excluding rellremenl benenb I Earn oul Compensalion) ars not discounted lo their present
va ue and are deiermin€d based on the be6teslimaie aequired lo setllelhe obligation atthe balance sh6€t
date, taking inlo accountthe risks and unce(ainties suffoundingthe obligalion, These are reviewed at€ach
balance sheeldale and adjusled lo teflecl the cunent best estimales.

Conlingenl llabilities are not recognised but d sclosod in the Notes to lhe Financial Statements.

Contngenl assets ar€ nol r€cosnised but disclosed in ihe Notes 10 the Financiai Statements, where an
innow ofeconomlc benefits is prcbable

2.11 Financlal lnst.umentg

Financial assels and ljnancia liabililie6 are rscognised wh€n the company becomes a party to the
c0ntractual provisions of the inslrumenls.

Financialassel6 and financia I lia bilities are inltially measured atfair value. Transaclion costs lhalare dkectly
atlribltable tothe acquisilion or issue of linancial asge1s and tnancialliabilities (olherthan financialassets
and llnancial liabilitie6 at fair value through p.ofil or loss) arc added lo or deducied from the value ofthe
tinancial assets or nnanclal liabllities, as appropriato, on initial rOcognaiion. Transaslion costs dirsclly
alt bulab le to the acqu isition of inancial assets o. financial liabilities al fa k value through profit or loss e re
recognised immedialely in profil or loss.

{a} Flnanclalassets

All recognised financial assels ar6 subsequently measured in lheir enlirely at oilher amoiised cosl or fair
valu6, depending on the classillcalion ofthe financial assets

Oebt inslrumenls thal meet conditions based on purpose ol holding assets and contractual lerms ol
inslrument are subsequently measured al amo is6d cosl using effeclive inlerest method.

All olher llnancial assels are measured aitairvalue

Income is recognised on an effective inleresl basis for debl instrumenis other lhan ihose financial assels
clessi{led as at FWPL. Interesl income is recognised in proiil orlos6 and i6 included in the "Otherlncome"
line item.

(b)lmpairment of financial assets

Ths company applies expected credit loss model ior recognizing impsiment loss on financial assets like
llads feceivabss, financial assels measured al amodis€d oosl, l€as€ rec€ivables and oiher conlractual
righls io eceive cash or olhsr inancial assels. Expscled cr€dit loss€s areweighted average ofcredit losses
wilh the respecive dsks oi default occuffing as the weights. Credit loss is lhe diitercnce between all
conlraclualcash llows iha! ero du€ to the Company in accordance with the contEct afld ell the cash flows
lhatthe Company sxp€cls to rsceive, discounted at oiginaleflectrve raie orinterest.

For Trade receivables, lhe Company measures loss allowance ai an amounl squal lo lifetime expecled
credit losses, The Company compules expected credil loss allowance based on a provision matrix which
lakes into account historical credit loss experienc€ and adjusted for forwad'looking infomalion.
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(c) Financial Liabilities

All tinancial liabilities are measured at amoftised cosl using elfeclive inlerest method at the end of
subsequent repoding periods. Inter€st expense is included in the Finance cosls lino ilem.

(dl oerecognition otfinanclal a$ets and liabilitie3

Th€ Compsny derccognises.a linancialassel when ihe contG6tual righls to lhe cash flows from the assei

expire, or when it transfers the flnanoial asset and 6ubslantiallv all the isks and rcwards of own€rship oi
the essel lo another larty.

The Company derccognises 
'inancial 

liabilities when the Companys obligaiions are discharges' cancelled

(el 0erivatlve financial inshuments

The Company ent€rc inlo foreign exchange loMard contracts 10 manage its exposure 10 forslgn exchange

Derivatives are inilially recognised atfat value aith€ datelhe de.ivative cont|aclE are enlered into and are

subseousntlv remeasured to theirfair value al the end ofeach rsportlng period The resulling gain or loss

is recognised in prcfit or loss immediately.

2.12 Cash and cash eq!ivalents (for puryoses of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash and cash equlval€nls for the purpos€ ol cash flow siatement comprige cash at bank' cash in hand

and short- t€rm investments net ot bank overdkfls wilh an original matu.iiy oflhree months or less'

2.13 Employee benefitg

Employee benelits include Provident Fund' Employee State Insu.ance Scheme' Graluity Flnd'

Compensated Ab6ences, Employee Medical Ins!€nceand Anniversary Awards

(al Defined oonhibution Plans

The Company's contaibulion to Provident Fund and Employee Slale lnsurance Scheme areconsidered as

defined c;ntribution plans and are charged as an expense based on lhs amounl ofconlribution requre! lo

be made and when seNices are rende€d by the employees

(b) D€flned benefit plans

Fordellned benefit plans in theform ofGratuity Fund,lhe cosi ofprovidin€ benefits is detemined usinglhe

Projecled tJnit Cre; rnethod, wilh aclua al valualions being cafiied oul al each balance sheet dale Re-

me;suremenl, comprising aciuarialgains ard losses and the relurn on plan assets (€xcluding nol interesl)

is reflecled immediatsly in lhe Bala;ce Sheet wilh a charge of credit recognised in Other comp'ehensivo

income in lhe pedod i;whbh lhey occur, Re-measuremeni recognised ln olhef compr€hensive income is

rcflecied imm;diaiely in r€tained eamings and is not reclasslti€d 10 proiit or loss Pasi seruice cost is

recognised immediaiety for both vested and rhe non-vest€d ponion. The retiromenr benofii obliqalion

reco;nised in th6 Balancs Sheet lepresenls the present value of the defin€d beneiit obligation' as rcduc€d

by fi; fait value oI schome asseis Anv asset rssulting from this calculation is limiiod taklrg nto tccouni

d€ presentvalue of available rcfunds and reducllons ln futur€ conlributions to ihe schemes'
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(c) Shortterm and other long tefm emptoyee ben€fiG

A liabllity is recognised for benefits accruing lo employees jn respoct ofwages and salades, annualeave
and sick l€ave in the period the related seNics is rendeaed al the undiscounted amounl of the benefits
expectsd to be paid in exchange for thal seruice.

Liabililies recognised in respect of shortierm employee benefils employee beneftts arc measured at lhs
undiscount€d amount ofthe benellts expect€d to be paid in exchange ioa the related s€Nics.

Liabi|lies r€cognised in respect ofolher loiglerm ernp oyee benefits are meas!rgd al lhe Dres€nt valle of
the eslimaled fulure cash oLrtflows expecled lo be mad6 by lhe Company In respect of services provto€o
by employees up lo the rcporting date.

2.14 Segment Rspo.ting

Based onlhe management approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 - Opetaling Segments, the Chi€i Operating
Decision ll,rlaker evaluates the company performance based on appaoprate segment classificalions and
allocaies resolrces based on an analysis ofvarious pedormance irdicalols by business segments

The Company is primarily engaged in lhe business of lrading madle chemicets. As per the Company's
Chiet Opetaling Docision Maker ("CODM'), the sks and rctums from its sales do nol vary mate atly.
Accordingly, lhere are no olher repodable segments as required to be reported under lnd AS 108 -
'Operating Segmenls

2.15 Earnings Per Shar€ (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculaied by dividing lhe profit of loss ail butable lo €qui1y s:\areholde6 ofthe Company by
lhe weaghted average number of equity shares outstanding during ihe peiod. Diluted EPS ls determined
by adjusting the profil orloss atlributable toequily shareholders andiheweighled average numberofequily
sharesouistanding forthe eifecls of all dilulivo polenlial equity shares.

2.'16 Leases

The Company evaluetes if an arrangemenl qualmes to be a l€a6e as per the requiremenls of Ind AS 116.

ldenlification of a lease requ res significant judgment. The Company uses slgnjficant judgement in
assesslng the lease term iincludrng anticipated rcn€wals) and the applicable discount €le.

The Company dgtermines the lease iem as ihe non-cancellable period ol a lease, Iogelher wilh boih
periods covercd by an option to exlerd the lease if lhe Company is feasonably cerlain t0 exercige that
oplioni and periods covered by an optjon 10 ierminaie lhe lease il lhs Company is reasonably certain not
to exercise thal option. ln assessing wh€ther lhe company is reasonably certain lo sx€rcise a.r opllon to
extend a lease. or nol lo exercise an oplion to lerminate a l6ase, it considels all r€levant lacls and
circumstances that create an economic inoenlive for the Company lo exercise the optlon lo extend the
lease, or not to exercise lhe oplion to teminate the lease. The Company tevises ihe lease term iflhere is

a change in the non-cancelleble peliod ola lease.

The discounirate is generally based on the incfomenlal bo(owing €te spgciiictolhe lease belngevaluaied
or for a portfollo of leases wiih similar characteristics.
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2,17 Borrowings and Borrowing Cost

Borrowings are inilially recognised at fair value, net of iransaclion cosls incuffed. Bor.owings are

subsequenily measu red at amodised cost Any differe nce belwee n the proceeds (nel of llansaclion co6ls)

and tie fedemption amount is recognised in prolit or loss over ihe period of ihe borowings using lhs
€ffectivs interest melhod. Fe€s paid on th€ eslablishmenl of loan lacilities arc recognised as lranssction

costs of the loan to lhe €xtent lhat it is probable ihat some of allofthe facility will be drcwn down. h this

case, the fee is deferred unlilthe d€w down occurs. To lhe exlent ther€ is no evidence thai it is ptobable

that some or al'oflhs facility willbe drawn down,lhe fee is capitalised as a prepaymeni fot liquidily services

and amortised over lhe De od oi ihe facility to which relates.

Borowings are removed from lhe balance sheelwhen lhs obligaiion specified in lhe contract is dlscharged

cancelled or expired. The diflercnce bellveen lhe carryinq amount of a tjnancial liabilitv thal h3s been

exlinguish€d or hanslered to snolher pariy and lhe consideralion paid, including any non'cash assels

llanslerrcd or liabiMies ass!med, is recognised in pro{it or loss as olher galns/(losses).

'Borowings are classified as currenl liabilities unloss the company has an uncondilional dghl to d6ief

settlement of the liability for al least 12 months after the r€porling pe od. Where there is a br€ach of a

mate al provision of a long-tem loan arlangement on or before the end ot ihe repoding peiod with the

€ffect that the liability becomes payable on dem and o n the rcporting date lhe e ntiiy does not c'assiv the

liability as cunent, if the lender agfeed, after the rcpoding pefiod and belofe the approval of the fnanciel

statements for lssue, notto demand payment as a consequence ofthe breach'

Borrowing cosls dkecily attributable to th6 acqujsition, conslruction or prcduction of an asset lhat

necessariiy lakes a slbaianliat period of time 10 gel ready for its intended use or sate are capitalis€d as

part oi $; cost of the asssl. All other borrowing costs arc expensed in the period in which they 06cur'
'Borrowing 

costs conlisl ofinterest and olher cosls thalan entity incurs in connection with thg borrowing 0f

funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange dilforsnces 10 the extent rcgarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing costs,

2.18 Share based payment

Share-based payment iransaciions of the Compa^y Equity-setlled share-bassd payments ro €mplovees

Drovidino sirnib;services af€ measured at the fair value oi the eqlity rnstfuments ai lhe granl date The

i"it urru-" outer.in"A al tho glant date ol the equity_seltled share_based payments ls expensed on a

ii"igiilt" b"il. 
""etit'tves]ing 

period' based on lhe companv's esumate ofequitv instruments thaiwill

eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equily

2.19 Cash dividend and [on'ca3h dlstribution to equity holdsrs of the pareot

The Company tecognises a liability lo make cash or non_cash disl bullonsio eqully hoLders ofthe pafenl

urr,"n *," ji*triortio-n i" 
"uthorised 

and the distribuiion is no tongef at ihe discretion oJ the company As

oeitre corporate raws in lndia, a distribulion is autho sed whsn it is approved by the shafeholdets. A

coffesponding amounl is rscognised dir€clly in equity

Non-cash disiributions are m€asll€d at the fair value of ihe assets to be dislribuled with fair valu€ re-

measur€ment recognised directly ln equity

Upon dishibuiion of non-cash assets, aty difference between the caffving amounl ol the liabilitv and the

Jrrytng 
"*ount 

ot tt'" ,""els disl.ibuled is recognised in the slatement of profit and losE'

6#S
i {ae"oarunu} !
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2.20 Critical.ccounting judgements and key sourc€s ofestimation uncertjainty

The prsparaiion of ihe Company's financial statements r€quires management io make ludgemenrs,
eslimates and assumptions that affect the applicalion ofaccouniing policies, rcported amounls of assets,
lab lilies, incom€ and expenses, and accompanying disctosures, and the disctosure ofcontingenl tiabititi6s.
Application of accounting policies thal r€qutre critical accounting eslimates involving comptex and
subjectve jldgemeits and the Lrse of assumplions in ihese llnanciat stalements. The estimates and
assocrated assumplions are based on hislorjcal experience and olher factols that are considered to be
.elevanl. Actualresulls may diffe.fiom lhese estina.€s.

Tho eslimates and undedying assumptions ar€ reviewed on an ongoing basis. The sff€cl of change in an
accounlrng esllmaie is recognised prospectiv€ly in the period oichanq6, if the change aftects that period
only or in ihe period oflhe change and futur€ p€riods iflhe change afiects both curent and future periods,

2.21 Sig nifi6ant Acco unting Judgments, Estimates and Assumpliong

The preparation of financial statements in coniormily wilh generally accepied accouniing pinciples requkes
management lo make eslimetes and assumplions that affeci the reporled anounts ofa66e1s and tlabilities
and disclosur€ ofcontingeni liabilitios at the daio ofthe financialstatements and the resulls ofoporalions
duing lhe reporting pedod end. allhough lhese eslimales are based upon managemenfs besi knowledge
olcufient events and actions, aciualresults could dlffer from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revlsions lo accounling eslimates are recognised in the
pe od in whlch th e eslimate s revised if lhe revision affecls only |nat peiod. or in :h€ pe od of ths rsvision
and future peiods iflhe revision affects bolh c!fienl and future periods.

Judgements: In the process ol applying ihe company's accounting policLas, management has /nade the
following judgements, which have the most signitcant effeci on lhe amouals recognised in lhe lirancial

Estimates and assumptlons: The key assumptions concerning the fuiurc and othef key sources of
sslimation u nce(ain1y at the repoftlng date, thal have a sig n ificanl risk of causing a m ete al edj! stment to
the cafrying amounts ol assels and liabililies withln lhe nexl fnancial year, are descibed below. Tb€
company based its assumpllons and estjmaleson pa rameters available when the financial slale men16 w€re
prepared. Exisling circumstances and assumptlons aboui fulure devejopments, how€ver, may change due

to malket changes or clrcumslances arising that are beyond ihe controlofthe company. Such chang€s are

reflecled in the assr,rmotions when thev occur.

lmpai.ment of non-financial asset6: lmpairment exists when lhe carrying value ot an assel or cash
gensraUng unit exc€€ds its rccoverable amount, which is the highet of its fair value less cosls ofdisposal
and itsvalue in use The fairvalue less costs of d isposal calculatio n is bassd on available dala from binding

sales transactio.s, conducted at arm's length, for sjmilar assets or obse able mafket prices l€ss

incremental costs for disposing of the asset, Th€ value in Llse calculaiion is besed on a DCF modei The

cash flow6 are derived from the budget fotlhe next iive yeals and do not include lesttucluing aclivities ihal
the company is not yei commllted to or significant future investrnsnis lhat will enhance lhe assels
pedonnance ot lh€ CGU being lesled. The recoverab e amounl rs sgnsilive to the discounl €te used fof

th€ DCF model as well as the oxpecled fulure cash-inflows and ihe growlh rale used ior exlrcpolation
purposes. Thess eslimates are most relevanl lo goodwill and other intanglbles wilh ind€tinile useful lives

recognised by ihe company.

TaxeB: Deterred 1ax assets are fecognised lor unused tax losses lo lhe extertthat il is probabl€ lhat laxable
prcfit will bo availablo against which the losses can be uulised Significant ma.agement judgemeni is

required lo derermine ihe amount of deferred 1ax asseis lhai can be recognised, based upon the :ikely

uriing and the leveloJluiurc taxable proJils togelhefwiih future tax pianning skategies.
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Fairvalu€ mea6urement oflinan6lal instnimontst When the tak valles of financial ass€ls and tnancial
liabililies record€d in the balanc6 sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active mark6ls,
thei. fairvalue ls m€asured using valuation techniques inctuding the DCF modet. Tho inpurs tothess mooers
are tak€n {iom obseNable mafkets where possjble. but where this is not foasabte, a de9re6 ofjudgement is
required ir oslablishlng fak values. Judgements includ6 consideraiions ol nputs s!ch as tiquidit dsk, credit
isk and volatility. Changes in assumplions about these factors coutd affect the repod€d fair vatue ol
iinancial instrum€nts.

Provisions and contingent liabilitiesj The Company has ongoing iiUgations with vaftous regujatory
authoilies and third parties. Whe.e an outflow offuids is beleved io be probabte and a retiabte estimat€
of the oulcome oflhe dispute can be made based on management's assessment of specilic circunstances
of each dispule and relevanl oxternal advice, management provldes for its best estimale of tho liabilily.
Such accfuals are by nalure complex and can tak6 number ofyearc to resolve and can involve esttmalon
uncertaintv.

Provi3lons and contingent liabilities: The Company hes ongoing litigations with regutatory aLthorities
and thkd parties- Where an outflow of flnds is believed lo bs probable and a reliable esiimale of lhe
outcome of the dbpuio cen be made bas€d on managemenl's assessment of specific circumslances of
oach dispule and relevant exlernal advice, rnanagement prcvides fof its best estimate ofthe liability. Such
accruals aro by nalure complex and can lake number of years lo resolvo and can involve estimation

2.22 Recentaccounting p.onouncements

The amendments to slandards that ar€ issued, but not yet effective, up 1o ihe date of issuance ol ths
tinancial slatemenls a.e disclosed below The Company iniends io adopl lh€s€ standads, if applicable,
when they become effective.

Recent pronolrocemenls Minktry ol Corporate Aita rs ( MCA") notifies new standads or a.nendments to
th6 exislihg standards unde. Compani€s (lndian Accounting Slandards) Rules as issled from iime lo
lime. For the year 6nded IVarch 31,2024, IvICA has nol noUllod any new slandards oram€ndments to the
exisling standards applicable to ihe Company.
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ren.xPldilit lndia Privat€ Lhit d
Not6 tormhg pa.1 ol llnancial stat6ment6,

4 Rlghl of Use tue€ts
lhe Company has eased land for corstucllon oi tactory ior a pefod of 15 yea6 enbdng inlo lhe lease arangemenls wlh Pidilite hduslres
Limled. Accordingly ihe company has accounted lor a RightTo U3e (Rou)assel and Lease Liab lty as per reqli.emerr of lnd As 116.

The weighl€d aveBge hmnentd boiiowrng 6te app! ed 1o ease iab lit es is 9.50/d (tu at 31sl March 2023 - I 5%)

Following arolhe changos inthecarrying value of right of 6€ assets for the year e.dod 31st Ma.ch 2024 and 315tlltarch 20231

a..umulared Debreciarlo.
96.87

(19.44)
96.87

(13 32\,

Ih.iollowing i3 tn6 bFak"lp of curcni.nd non-curent lo.B€ li.bilill.s a3 ai 313t M.rch 202rt.nd 31st Ma.cl2023:

J1.03.2021 31.3.2023

Non-curenl lea3e liabilili€s

4.28
82.59

3€1
86.87
90,73

The iollowing is tho movoment in l€aso liabiliti6 during th.y€ar ended 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023:

5. Capilalwotk in ProgBss

313.2023
galance.lth. b6ginnlnq

Flnance c@t 6ccru6d dudn! the per od

Paweni of ldse riab lilies

90.73

412
12 A3 12 03

86.87 90.?8

Thotabte betow provtdis d€ratt3 reqa.ding tha conractuat maturitios oi loas€ llabililie6 as at 316iMarch 2024, at3lslMatch 2023 on an

31.03.2024 1.3.2023

82.17

12,03

94 20
142,32 154,35

The compdn! does not lace a signtficanr tiquidiiy isk wiih €gard to ls leas6liabilties as the cuirenl €sseis a€ sllfcenl lo meel ihe oblig.to.s

etated d re;se lisbitities as a when ihey tald!e, The agoreqate depfecialion on ROU a3sels has been incuded lnder deprecalion and

amodisation expense in lhe slat€mentot Protl and Lost

Anouniin CWIP fora poriod or

Amount In CW|Pfore porlod ot

1.4$.40 60.03

Nole: The Capiiat wo* in P.ogre€s pedains lo a ma;ufactling plani.Thee ls no capiial work in Proorcss. whose cost has erceeded

comDaed to ils oricinst ptan. Furiher,thereis no project which has been sospe.ded lempora yeilherin cuiientyesrof prcviour yeaf
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T.nar Pldlllt. lndlr Piv.t Llnlted
N.te fornlng p.rtolllnahoisl.t t h..L

7 otlror

31.03.202.1 1.03.2023

S€curity Dep6its wilh Guja6t Electicilv adard

TOTAL

1504 326

16,64 8,26

31.03.202,r 31.03,2023

17 33 17 33

a l.v.ntorlor(Al lN€r ofcdt..d net r.arlzlbl6 valu.) ---- 'in 
LllrLl

3r.03_202331.03.202'l

RawMatena & Packino Mate a (6fer.olo (a) below)

Slock in Trade (rci€. noto (6) b€low)

TOTAL

247.82

14492
4215

1.13

901.12
19.32

195.02

50t,o0 ,87

l'.i.icrua""ooasi"r,"nsrreto*inihdeand@wm.todall12672lakhs{lncud6t6ood6inl6nslEwnateal&packnohale'lt'12'121

Ill ir,l-"iir 
"fiL"""ro'i* 

in"rrdes pbvision ror slock in lrsde a To 77 akhs and raw mal€dals I r'35 akhs (as on 31 03'2023 _ * 56 55lakhs)

31,03.2024 31.03,2023

rnveslmenl in MutualFund measu€d al fakvalue $roosh troll of loss (Reier belos nole)

TOTAL

Tata utra shon tem lund - diEct plan - gro{h
Tala lquid lund 'd rect Plan ' qroMn

971 58

23.78 0 84

293.15

at3i.03

35,15,741.26 10 057,

Inveslm€d in quol€d mulualtund



T.nax Prdrrrrc Indt. Priv.l3 Llnlled
Noles tolmtng p..t ot f In.ncial slat€mont!,

31,01,2024

Unsecured consdered€ood

Lessr Arrowan@s ior Exp€ct€d crodil Loss
TOTAL

31,03,2023

253.00

254,05

395.37

254.06 3S0.52

525

(i) Undispuled ll8de Bcivables -

(ii) Undispured iGde re(e'vabtas

(ii)oiiputed l..de recevabl6s .

(iv)Dispuled i'ade recervabree .

Less: Aiowance lor doubttu|

Out!l..dlnq lor lollo*lna oe, odi tromdu. dale ot svdenr

U) Und spul€d l.ade receivab es -

(ii) Undlsputed lrsde recelvsbl€s

(ili) oispuled tade receivables -

(iv) Disputed tEde Eceivables -

248 S0 131 65

525

182 385 37

131,65 ,1.32 390.42
Less A lwance fofdoubtful 5.25

34637



I€nax PldilitoIndia Private Limlt d
Notes to.mlng part of financial slaterhEnls.

12 Cash and Cash EquivalenG
a ln Lekh3

3t,03,2021 31.03.2023

Balenc€s wlth banks
ln Cun€ntAccount

TOTAL

13 Bank Balances otherthan Cash and Cash Equivalenla

75.70 19 50
75.70 19.50

! ln Lakhs

31.03.2024 31,03.2023

Fhed Deposits with banks
In Fixed DepositAccounts wilh original malurity of morc than 3 months bui less ihon 12 monlhs

Eamarked Accouni
Balanc€s with unpaid dividend bank accounl(refer note below)

TOTAL

14.42

0.00

13.73

000
t3.73

Noie: Amount as at 31 03.2024 is Rs 13 after netting olf bank charges of Rs 354 (31 .03 2023 - Rs 367)

14 FlnanclalAsB€13 - ohers. curent
? ln Lakhs

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Interest accrued on tixed deposit
Receivablo agalnst loMard coniract
Dsposii with Elecr clty Boad fcr temporary conneciion

TOTAL

15 Other cuftenl Assets

0",, 0.69
5.91
1.18

080 7.74

a In kkhs

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

un8€curod, consldered good

Balances wilh GovetnmentAulhoritios
Advance to slPPiers and employees

TOTAL

10.59
318.30

1.15

0.9
465.21

448
330,04 470.59



T.nar Prdllb Indb Pnvat. Ltnitod
Not s rormrns prnotnn..cirt tt!r.henB

t InL.khs

50 000 Equliy Sha.* ot Rs 100 each

eo 000 Equily Snares or Rs 1co each, tuLty pB6{9

si0r.. oLrrianding al besini ns or year
Shal.r su.d during tho y*r
Shar.s oltl.nding ar and or rh. y.ar

60.00

Nunb.rotsr\i6. a li L.kh.

60 00 60p00 60 00

5r.000 30.00 60 db{ 60 00

!. Reconcrr.rro^df the.umberor!h3r...ndaoou.rout8t ndrig.rr

rio c.npdy hs mry ma c * d squ ly sh3r6 tiaving a par var€ d r0or p* lharc Each rrolder ol.qujry:hac ho divrd.nc prcpdlsd bylh.
soad d DnodoB I .ubt6d ro hs a

3 r.hain nq a36e1s or 0re comgant a pBr.f.nria smounc ii proponh !o rhor lharehotding

c. sharcsh.rdhyhordrnscohp'iyrnd.ubsrdltryothotdhgconprny
.2,m0 Eqully sharcs (6 ar 31 03 2023 . a2,0co Equ ry 6haG!) ec h. d by Pidi lio Ind6lrtca Lin iod, lhc hotding @mpaiy

d, oelrrlsorsh!{horda6 holdlno moBlh.n 6%3hrr* Inrho Coftp!.y: _ a!.tr1.03.20t4 L { r!.0r,t011
No. olSha..B %olHordr.O No..t Sh.!3 h.td %otHltdtnq

shrrehordr.g or croross'r (n.n96 dLlng rh! rra :

No.o's,8, ""o,.odio'@q
0e,! i?,!no 70 oala 0%

Tmars PA 096 1?.999 2999%

4,751.33

T|l|!Gl9ied6amm9..p@ai$liecumu,tv.9.orisofihecompany.idef.cbolr.m'a!!rmoilofdel|nedb.o.|tob|iqalo6Thl5Ri@d9enDeul|lk€dina@a^@wlh
tha uovk disotihe CohDanres Aci 2013

\\
\L'rRd 

q
lp
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Tanax Pldiliie lndl. Prlvat€ Limtt d
Nol€ tormlno part ot linancialsret ments.

13 Oef.ii.d T.r Llabllltl6lNotl

P.openy, P ant and oquipmentand Inlano bte Assets
Expens$ disaiowed on Eccount of Sec 37 {1)
On amuntof llmlng ditterencg in Lease liabrity and Risht !o lse of Ass6r (Ner)

198.11

(r r3)
12661
( 82)

(2 33)
19460 123.47

31.03.202! 31.3.2023

Tolal Oubtandino duee io M @ Entercr ses & Sde EnieDrises (R€iar Note 36)
Tolal OutstandinO dues to crcdiiots orherthan Mico Enteeises & Sro lEnte.prises

TOTAL
370 59 709 i0

Oot l..d,n. tor tollowi.. Mlods lfod .loe d.t. rl 
'rv'nonr

0 MSr\4€

(iD Dispured oues ' MSME
liv) Disoule! D!6 . olhe6

125 26

125,26 256.74 3.91 335_01

Olrslan.lh. for torldl.a reriodG toi due dst. of Davmenl

(i D o spured ou* - lllsME
(iv) oisDuted oues - others

6r6 93 141.53 .15

20 Othar Curent F1n.nci.l Li.balhi€g

Crcd 106 icr Caplt.l Coods
Retenlion capirar Goods
Provlsion lor tEde rclsled schemes and €imbuBments
E.np oyse Glaled payable

P.ysble againsi rotuard @nt@cl
TOIAL

2l Olhet Curr.nt Li.bililles

31 30

009

31.03,2024 31.3.2023

St8i0to.y Remlta^@s

Provislonfo. Efi ployee Ben€fit {Rolar Nole,l3)

34.03.202i1 31.3,2023

001

31.03,2021 31.3 2023

1.72



Tanax Prdilite Indla Private Limited
Notes lorming part of financlsl statenenls.

23 R.v.nu€ From Operalions
a ln Lathg

31,03,2024 31,03.2023

Rovenue From Opo.ations

TOTAL (A)

Othor Operating Revenue

Hand in9 and Transporlation Charges

TOTAL (B)

Revenue lrom operations (A+B)
TOTAL

0.66

4,42 0.60

5.93

!1.03.202331.03,2024

Bank Depos I

RefLrndoflncome Tax
Other Non.Op€ietlng Incomei

Gain on sa e oI Muloa Fund
Net gain arslng on rinencialassets / Lrabilll es designaled as at FWPL
Povlson no lon96.r€quned wr ten back

0.96
250

18 06
20 3A

5.25

37 11

428

23.90
6.16

11.25

TOTAL 47.15 82_70

25 cost of Mai6ials coneumed

31.03,2024 31.03,2023

Raw t{aterialat lho beginning of tt. yo.r
Add : R€v mat6.i.lto sfock in trad€

Less Raw lvaierial ai the end ofthe year

26 Purchase of Stocl in Trado

947.12247.42
950.22 613,04

( in Lakhs

907,12 113,42

31.03.2024 31,03.2023

PurchaseolStoc\ in Tlade 1,030.92

TOTAL 1,030.97 2,259,62

dr\)
i ("^"**9 *

G/t



Tenax Pldilite lndia Priv.ie Limilod
Not.B formlng part offlnanc;al statement3,

27 Chanse In Inve.toriesof Finished Good., Work in Progress and Stock in T|ade

31.03.2023x1.03.2024

Inventorl*.t.nd ot lhe year

Invenlories at besinning otthe year
Stock-in-Trade

144 92 433.41
19 32

195 02
212.11 617.75

433.41

19.3?
195.02

48043
4.19

19 86

(B)
(B).{a)

TOTAL

- 647.75 504.48

4t561 -14327

435,61 -143 27

2E Employee Benofi13 ExPense

31.03.2021 31.03.2023

Salarissand Wages
Gral!lty
Compefsatad abs€.ces
Slaff Wellare Epenses

12173
274
5.18
834

TOTAL 137,99

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Interest on lease li6b litY

30 Dopreci.tio..ndAmortiz.tion Expense

412
537

846
335

TOTAL

31.Q3,?024 31.03.2023

on TangibleAsseis (Refer Nole 3)

Dopreclalion on rightofuse assets (Relernote 4)

Amorlizalionof IntangibeAssets (RetetNoleB)

48
6.12

10.43

21.62
612

10 22

t18.03 37,96

d-\)
: IBENGALURU) 9w9



t in L.kh3

31,03.2024 3t.03.2023

sub cont@ctrng job worfi charges
50.21

0.89
1_23

'1TT_45

21.78
1.02

16.71
6.22

21.98
3.37

36E9
525
4.00
0.96
9.18

30.23
32.92
12.34
12.&
10.03
19.97

08.2E

1.45
242.64

5.85
14.39
0.79
1.40
0.36

11.63
2.21

o.oo
9.59

96.52
8.79

Warehousing Cha€es
R€nt {R€rer nole 36)

Manpower Supply Seruica Cha€68
cwtoms Clearing and foljrardlng charges
Tanspodation Cha€e€

RepaiG & Maintonance for Equlpments and lT
L6gal Prol6$ onal and consuhancy iBe6

Tlaveling and Conveyanc6 Exp€nses
Bad debls a.d advancae w ton ofi
P6ym6nts roAudilor (Refer not6 38)
Seuing & Distribulion Epenses
Net loss on foreign cufi€ncy transa€lionsand lranslalion

Conir:bulion to Corporalo Social Rosponsibility ( Reter note 42)

Planlstole cons!tnablos
Loss on sa s/damage of PPE
Misellan6ous 6xpense8

TOTAL

1.96

#-\*-\
i ["."oo'u*u,; 

:

\u#t



Tenax Pldlllto lndia Private Llmlt€d
Notes loming part of tinanclal statemeds,

32 contingont Llabillti!3 and commitmenls

31.03.202i1 31,0r.2023

A) Conrlnqe.t liabilities not tr.rld.i rorl

Claims.ga nst the Comp.iy nol scknowledge as debis comprse:

Direci 16x rnate16

lndnocil6t matlers

Eslimated 3mount oi @.l6cts, nel ofadvan@s
,cquisilion of prcpedy planl 8nd equipm6nl atd

Fma niig io beexeculed l0r lhe

TOTAL

28 11 110.6r

24.11 110.61

33 EamlngsP€rShare{EPS)
The followi.g ieflecbfi€ Prctit and sharo daa used In the Basic and Dlluted EPS conputatlonsl

3t.03.2024 31.03.2023

Totaloperations forth€ y.ar I poriod

Weighted average numberol equily sha€s lor calollalinq bas c and diuied EPS

Parva ue pershare
Earning pef sha€ (Basicand Diluled)

34 Segm.nt intormation

The Company is operaung in a 5ingle segmenl ie manufaclunns end t.adng ol
process ng prodlcls, smooihing and polBhrig p6ducl3, resi.s mastics abrasves

(CODM)do6s rol segr€gate lhe aclvili€s or p@ducls 6s E se!m6nl Gviewslh€n ss

as per IND AS 108 is notapplicable.

chemicas (marble p@ces3ino producls. su.la€
poishes). The Chiet ou@r ot Decisson making

singb seqmenl and hence the s€gmeil reporoig

242.41
60 000

100
403.35

272 23
60 000

100
45312

35UnhgdgedFo|eigncuff€ncy{Fc}Exposolothalhav6notbeenhedgedbyaD€dlativ€tnstrum€ntsolheMi3€areasFo||ows:

endhq 31,03,2023€ndinc 31.03,2024

205,540.98 1A4 72

5,669 89

38.447 24

4,42

34.36

6%\)
3 (u'"o^'u*g Iwt



Tenax Pldlllte lndia Private Limited
' Noteg formlng part offinanclalstatemonts.

36 Disclosures rcquired undsr section 22 of Micro, smalland M6dium Ent€rprlse Development Act, 2006
t ln Lakhs

As at
31.O3.2021

As at
31.03.2023

(i) Principalamount remaining unpaid to any SIVIE supplier as althe end of the

accounlrng year

(ii) lntere6t duo thgleon remaining unpeid to any supplier as at the end ofthe
accounllng year

(lii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts ofthe payment made

tothe suppliBr beyond the appointed day

(iv) The amount of intgresl due and payable for the y€ar

{v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the

accountrng year
(vi) The amountofludher inlerest due and payable even in the succeeding
year, untilsuch date when lhe interest duesas above are actually paid

TOTAL

3.87

45.43

3.44

3.44
3.87
7.32

(The pfincipaL dues includes pertalning to creditors for capital good6 a6 al31st March 2024 is R8. 23 lacs and 31st l\/arch

2023 is Nil)

The above infomation fegarding dues to lllicro and Small Enterprises has been detgrmined to the exienl such padies

hale been identified on lhe basis of information collected with ihe Company

37 oetails of Paymenls to Audltor
{ in Lakhs

For tho yeat gndsd

3,|,03.2024
For the y6er onded

31.03.2023

Ar,rdit fees 4.00 4.00

4.00

38 Tho Short-term Lease Disclosurc

The company had entered into leaseg for office premlses and ware houg€, that arc renewablo on a pe odic basis and are

c€ncellable bi giving the notice from one month lo three months There are escalalion clause in ihe agreement and there

are no restaictions imposed in the lease anang€menis. There are no 6ubleases and contrn96nt renrs'

The company has incurred 0'89 |acs for lho y€al ending 31st [,{alch 2024 ('or ihe year end'ng 31st ldarch 2023: Rs' 3,92

lacs) towad; minimum tease payrnent, same has been shown in capitsl work in progress being factory pr€-operative

expenditure. There are no Non canceltable lease commltments on accounl of these shodlem lees€s

The Company is availing the exemplion available for short_tem and low valu€ lease under IND AS 116'

#A%
3 ["."oo'u*u,; 
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l. nax Pldilite t.di. Privsi6 LiEitod
llotEs fo.ming p.rt ot financi6t staten€nt3.

40 R€laiod Parly oiGclosuresi

A NaneB of r6t.tsd prrtiFand natur€ ot rotatonship, whore cont'ot.ri3t€,
(i) Holdlng Company:

P dl ile nduslries Lld
(ii) Investor Company:

Tenax S P.A

B List of R.lated Partt6s with whon trln.actions havorake. pta.. duri.g th€ y.arl
(i) tlolding Companyl

Pidille Indlsfies Ltd
(li) lnv$torComp.nyl

Tenaxs.PA
(lii) Coftp3ny owned by Inv6sto. company:

Tenax India tndia nd!striaL Chemicats pvl.Ltd

{iv) Entltlos undercofimon cont/ot:
Pidille Grupo Puma Manufaclu ngLtd
ICA Pi't lite Pvt Lid

c ag96gat. relrtod par 6s dj3ctosu.o:

SlNo

Pvt.Ltd.)
Itd,)

2

3

i

$e deed fegislElion charees

Elp€ns.e pay.ble tow.rd6 6orylce3

l'/anrowe. Supply SeNice Cha€es

Reimb!Bement of exp6nser

R€nnbu.semenl ot planl if aug!ralion

455
(16.96)

3,429.65
(333086)

1!6!6
\24115)

1203
(12.03)

4.52
(58 59)

(6.38)

1t 80

(5.25)

444.72

1212517)

133 53
(31345) 16 ?6)

39.54
(127)

B.lancos oatst.ndinq!
257 81

(300 54i

5,39

1302 951

{4 8?)

207."4
(492.53)

8.73
I t7 03t (7.371 03.30

Tenax SPA,ncudes lransporl chaQer paid to

' ExcllEive of Good3 and sedl@ lax
Note:The inlonnatonls based onlhe name ofparliosasidentlied byihe marageme.t

Fgu@s n O reprose.t lssl y€ar's ligues



Ten.x Pldllit€ lndla P v.te Limited
Notes forming prrt ot llna nci6 | sirtenenb,

D€tered rar sssets(!iabilri6s) in 16er on 10.

2 2023 21

2022-23

in

b Th. inconc tax orpens. toriho vet.c.n b. r€conclldd 1o the accounling profltas rollows:

42 Corporat Social Respon!ibili9

c)

D

s)

h)

I ln Lakhs

Fortho yoa..nded Forth6yearended
71,03.2021 31.03.2023

Amolnl €q! r6d lo be spent dunno thevear
Amounl ol axpenditurc incutred

ShorthLl al $e end of lhe year

Totai ot prevlous yeare shortfal,

D€tails ofrelaled pady lransactions, e.g., conl bulion to a lrusi conlroLled by he c0mpany n

re aUon lo CSR etpendilue as per rel€v€ntAccountnO Standad

whel6rprcvsion sm.deunhr€sp€cttoaliabillvincutredbvente.ns ntoa@nl€ctual

obioallon lhe movedo.ls in ihe prov s on du nglhevearshouldbeshotnsepaGlev

Note:ThecsR€xp€ndnu@hasbeen@nkbuledloTrv€niKalyanFoundatonlN.lds,omen€mpowementandeducalionforlheyea|endng3]slMarch
202,1and 31Bl March 2023 ds D€r CSR Policv ot the @mpanv

^o

Pmperry, Prantand Equ pnenr

Provision for ooub(ul 0ebi5
GEluilv and conoensated absenc€s

(126 61

1.32

{7150)

(1.32)

179 {0.66

(19811

J3
1123,17' I19a.6C

Pbp€lty, Plant and Eq!lPmenl

P hvlqion idr DorbHu I Debls

000.11)
1,13

(26.50)

(0.30)

(126.61)

132

In r..p.ctolcutrsntyearl

Tot llncomelarorperce.ecognls€d Inthecur.ntvearrellnng
to contln!lno ooe6tion3

31.03,2024 31 03 2023

9.96 57.39

Protltboforet x iiom opeations

Inmme lax expense ca cuLaied

Efiscl ol expens* lhdt a€ noideduclible Lndetominjnq bx.bl6 prctit

Etrecl olexpenBe! lhat arc deductib s in detem n ng taxab€ p.onl

Eifect ot ncohe which .€ charoed al diffe€nt tax mt€

Eff€ci ol delered tax on tim ng dife€nces
Incom.tax expeN. recogniBed In protlt or loss (rolatrns to

contlnu,ng op€rallonr)

31,03.2021 31.03 2023
322.42 355 37

81,15

(116.43)

89.57

(50,15)

26.25

83,53

dx\\
i("***9*
\N#t



Tent Pldilitelndb Pnyab Limiled
Notes rormrng pan otth. tindnctatslatem6rrs

The company has c.$tied various €mptoyee benefts as under
(A) Osrln.d Conlriburion Ptan.

(a)Provderi Fdnd
(b)s|ara D€t n€d conrdbulon P€n - Empoya16 conl.iburion ro Emp oyees,srat€ Insu.an@

Trre Prcvdenl Fund a.d tfre srate oer ned contdburior Prans arc ope€red by rhc Regionar providenr Fund comn ssioner.s app rcable roj a telqibt€
empbys€sunderlheschemeslheaompanyisr€luredloconlribuleaspecredpe@ihgeofpayrcttcosttothe€0rch€nlbenoitsctrmeEiotund
lhe benelirs Theso lunds arc ie@gnised by th6 In@ho Tax Aulhorities

(BlD.rhed Ben€ft Ptan

In rne DBso.tv.lue or defined benefil

3

Prc*nl vaue ol delined baneirt obtigauon al the beg ining ot the year

Rem.asuenedF (sa nB)/ o$es ncruded n oc
Aclus rial (gain s)/ losses arsing roh cMnges n demoq6pi6 assumptoi
Actuadal (gains)/ losses.rsho lrod chaioes n iianca assqmption
AduanarGa nsy rosse. arsins toh.hanses n exrdenco a,ludmenr

1.72
2.62

2

Ples€nl value of deiined benetl obligalioi as al31st March
Fan va ueor pai assers as al31st March

cutrent po.lion of lire above (Rerer Nole 22)
Non 4renl Dorlion of ure abov€ (Ref€r Nora 221

1.35

taLM (2012n4)

lv
t!rnut rvD 

'on;ifivity 
di.ryrrs io

)r*oum6re- r00 b.sis poinrs

*colnl616- 100 basE po ils mpacl (%)

)rs6!nr.arE + 100 basis &ii16 nnor.r {1r)

iare, r00 basispod' hpad (%)

rare r 100 bas 3 oo 
^r5 

hpacrl%r

0.12
aa2

such as sup9y and denrnd n rhe enpoyme.r ma.ke(
tak€s a@unl ol inrlatioi, s€norv, prcmo0on and oiher Gr4a racroc



T€n.r Prdlllt€ hirra Prrvde l|mlsd
Note. fonning parl of llnrnoltl .tlt€ndnb,

The follo{ing a6 analyl cal Ellos io. Ih€ y€ar ond€d 313t March 2024 and i13t March 2023!

cunenlR.fo curle Asse6
R.tum oi Eqully Rello N6l Pdit 3lt6r leles
Inv€nlory tumovd .,ato CBt of Goods Sold

TEde R.C€iv6hl$ turndef Glio Reveiue
T6d. p.yabr6 turiov€r Elio c.sr of Good3 Sold
Nsl*pitallu over.alio R€venua

N.t profn €lio N€t Prolit b€fo.e lax

av€E0a shar.holde/s lunds

ave60e rrdds R€c6ivab*

Aleraoe Capilal EmpLyodR.tum on Capilal edployed Prolit b.lor€ Inte@sl and lare.

24

2.1 2.1

Debtseryre c@e6ge Rsrio Eamings aeallable fordeblsedice

1. rmpr6ve in wo*inq ep bL srdlegy by Ed!.ino exce6. inv6nrofv.

2. hp.ove.ih aveag. d€btor @lle<tlon trco pGvious yea.,

ADrrov.tofttn.nchlltateFent:Thefnanclalstatem€nt6eereapprcvedrorissuebvlheboardordirecloBon23dAPr|2024

tho amounls and dilrctogurcs lnctuded tn the fina.cial 3tatemnls ol lhe previour yoar have b€en r€clsssLtied and egroup.d whereev€r nece66ary.

The a@mpanylng not* arc tofring prd ot lh€ linancial 3ld6me.l9.

45

,t6

$,-9\

v

In i.mE ot ou Repon atach€d
For M.h€.hwrd A A..ocl.isrre

#9

Fo...d on b.h.rl ol ihc Bo.rd


